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City of Healdsburg  
 

Request for Information  
 

Date: January 21, 2016 

Project Name: Fitch Mountain Open Space Preserve Management 

Plan RFP 

Issued To: Mandatory Pre-Proposal Meeting Attendees  

 

The following information is for clarification purposes and does not modify or alter the Request 

for Proposal (RFP) document  This information described below is made a part of the RFP and is 

subject to all of the requirements thereof as if originally specified. 

 

The questions below #1-22 were submitted prior to the pre-proposal meeting. 

Questions in black and answers in red: 

 
1. What is the expectation for the CEQA/permitting component? Does the City expect project teams 

to include a CEQA expert, or is this a concern for later, which may be treated separately?  As an 

alternative, would the City perhaps like to have a CEQA expert available at least at an advisory 

level during key project meetings?  

1. Please refer to addendum #2 

2. What is the involvement of the Open Space District? Are they involved in the development of the 

management plan?  We have previously worked with the District and are familiar with their 

cartographic and geodatabase templates as well as other documentation formatting.  Would the 

District be involved to the degree that the City might like to utilize similar templates?  

1. The Open Space District will be a reviewer of the plan, and has indicated a willingness to 

serve as a resource in developing the plan, but they are not part of the project team. The 

City would support – but not require - using similar cartographic and geodatabase 

templates and formatting.   

3. What information has been compiled so far at the site? Have plant, animal, or habitat surveys 

been conducted in the past? If so, who conducted and for what purpose? Have any special-status 

species been documented on the property?   

1. The City of Healdsburg is unaware of any plant, animal, or habitat surveys that have been 

conducted on this property.  Given the location and habitat, it is possible that there are 

Special Status Species on this property.  Therefore, the consultant will need to study this 

as part of the project. 
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4. Does the City have an existing spatial database of site features?  If so, what layers are included? 

1. The city does have geospatial database features.  The features included are: Downtown 

Streetscapes, Detention Basins, Street Islands, Parking lots, Parks, Schools, and some 

other City owned facilities. 

5. What is the history of the property in terms of ownership, land use, and land management? 

1. The Fee acquisition of Fitch Mountain has been a priority for both the District and the 

City for decades, but the recent acquisition is a somewhat complicated affair.  The 

Sonoma County Agricultural Preservation and Open Space District (”District”) first 

purchased a conservation easement over a majority of the Property in September, 1994.  

The negotiations between the District and the owners anticipated public use by including 

a permitted use in the conservation easement  “to convey all or a portion of the property 

to the City of Healdsburg or other willing park or open space entry for the purpose of a 

park.”  The District attempted to purchase the Property in fee in early 2003, but 

negotiations failed and the Property was sold to a private party.  The District pursued 

discussions with the new owners culminating in a purchase and sale agreement in 2012.  

But complications continued.   

A survey performed by the District in early 2013 revealed the existence of 23 

encroachments on the Property.  The encroachments ranged from garden and the brush 

removal to structural improvements.  Some of the encroachments affect land subject to 

the Original Easement, which prohibits such uses of the Property.  For liability reasons, 

the City made clear it will not accept fee title to any portion of the Property with 

encroachments, nor will the City accept the Property with pending easement violations.  

After extensive negotiations with the Seller in 2013 and 2014, District staff secured a 

new purchase agreement with the Seller which addresses these matters by accomplishing 

the acquisition in two phases. 

The District acquired fee title to Phase One of the Property, comprising approximately 

170 acres, in November 2014.  The District quickly transferred the land to the City, 

which in turn transferred the land to the non-profit organization LandPaths.  Landpaths 

executed an Irrevocable Offer to dedicate the land to the City and the City plans to accept 

that offer after a three year period.  The Seller has until June 2016 to resolve the 

encroachments on Phase Two of the Property.  If the encroachments are resolved, the 

City will acquire title to that additional land. The Phase One parcels are all that is needed 

for park development purposes.  

 LandPaths, for the time being, will manage the property on behalf of the City, while the 

City begins to prepare the Management Plan.  At such time as the Management Plan is 

complete and the site is ready to open officially, the City will serve as the lead agency 

under CEQA for adopting the Management Plan and any measures associated with the 

action. 
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6. Is there an anticipated federal nexus that could trigger federal environmental regulations? 

1. The City is not aware of any federal environmental regulations triggered for this project, 

as the project will be funded by the State Coastal Conservancy.  The consultant will be 

expected verify and study this as part of the project. 

7. How big is the property in acres (CPAD data shows approximately 125 acres)? 

1. The Property is 198 acres.  Phase One consists of 172 acres 

8. What are the two Phases of the project, as shown on the RFP “Acquisition” map? 

1. Phase One consists of 172 acres, and Phase Two consists of 26 acres. See project 

background information in #5. 

9. What is the approximate total length of the existing trail network?  Is there a targeted length for 

new trails?   

1. The trail length is unknown.  The consultant will need to verify as part of the project. 

10. Will the City require construction drawings for the trails as part of this project? 

1. No. The project will need to produce planning level drawings for the trail system, along 

with typical design standards and examples that would address trail construction issues 

such as erosion control, grade changes, etc. Construction drawings would come at a 

future phase of work.  

11. Are there any bridges or staging areas anticipated to be part of this project design/planning?  If so, 

does the City have a sense of where? 

1. This question will need to be studied by the consultant as part of the project. Providing 

access to and throughout the property has terrain, runoff, etc. challenges that will need to 

be studied.  

12. How is the Operations and Maintenance program related to the Management Plan or the Trail and 

Recreational Use Plan?  Please provide additional details on what is expected for the program. 

1. The operations and maintenance program is requested as part of the project in order to 

provide the City with the tools and knowledge to be good long-term stewards of the 

property. The City envisions that the Management and Trail/Recreation Use plans will set 

the stage for how the property is to be used and improved, and the operations and 

maintenance program will guide the City in managing the property long-term. There will 

likely be overlap between each of these project elements.  

13. Is the proposal really due this Friday? The site visit on 1/5 and the likely addendum on 1/6 seems 

like a very tight turnaround given the holidays. 

1. The Proposal deadline has been extended to January 29
th
, 2016. 
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14. Is it the City’s intention for the Plan to cover both Phase 1 and Phase 2 (as shown on the “Two-

Phase” Project Location Map? 

1. The Management Plan will cover Phase One, and in the unlikely occurrence that Phase 

Two is transferred to the City of Healdsburg within the specified time, the city will 

amend the Agreement. 

 

15. Have there have been discussions about eventual trail users? Does the vision for the open space 

include multi-use trails? Would any users be excluded (i.e. no horses? No mountain biking?), or 

is it the intention that Plan development should include this analysis and eventual 

recommendation? 

1. This will need to be evaluated and analyzed as part of the project. At this point no 

decisions have been made about who would be accommodated on the site and who would 

be excluded.  

 

16. We are aware that a trail head has been discussed for Villa Chanticleer. Are other trailheads under 

consideration or is it the intention that Plan development should include this analysis and 

eventual recommendation? 

1. At this point, the most logical place for the trailhead is at the Villa Chanticleer, but 

feasibility of other access points should be studied in the Management Plan. 

 

17. What is the total acreage of the area covered by the plan—199 acres? Will the plan cover the area 

identified as Phase 2 in the map included in the RFP? 

1. The Management Plan will cover Phase One (172.92 acres).   In the unlikely occurrence 

that Phase Two is transferred to the City of Healdsburg within the specified time, the city 

will amend the Agreement to cover Phase Two. 

18. News reports indicate that property boundary disputes with neighbors, and concerns about 

neighbor-owned structures on Preserve land, have been resolved. Please confirm. Are there any 

other major neighbor concerns that are already known? (We expect that parking/traffic may be 

one.)  

1. Phase Two property boundary dispute with neighbors has not been resolved.  That said, 

this Agreement is for Phase One and not Phase Two. 

 

19. For the public outreach effort, which tasks will be handled by the City and which by the 

consultant:  meeting logistics, meeting facilitation, and mailing/posting of meeting publicity? 

1. The consultant will be expected to be part of the public outreach as it relates to the 

Management Plan, but LandPaths will be the lead agency in relation to public outreach, 

logistics and meeting the public. 

 

20. Do you expect that one or both of the stakeholder meetings will include the City Council? (We 

assume that both stakeholder meetings will include the interested public; please confirm.) 
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1. The City Council would review and approve the plan at the conclusion of the project. The 

stakeholder meetings would be public meetings and the Council may attend, but the 

Council would not be the focus of these stakeholder meetings.  City staff would provide 

periodic updates to the council. 

 

21. What level of detail do you want for the Trail and Recreation Plan? We expect that you are 

looking for sample design guidelines, and approximate trail alignments, but not detailed 

construction drawings; please confirm. 

1. See question #10. 

 

22. Do you expect that meetings with the project partners will be needed? If so, how many? 

1. Yes, we anticipate at least six meetings through the project phase.  

Pre Proposal Meeting Questions- questions in black and answers in red: 
 

23. Do we have a written document on the fire management practices? 

1. The City of Healdsburg does have an Interim Fire Management Plan for Fitch Mountain 

Park.  

1.  -See attachment 

 

24. Are there any background studies on the property? 

1.  See response to Question #3. 

 

25. There is an existing trail network. What are the plans for the existing network vs establishing new 

trails? 

1. There is an existing fire access road that has been developed on the property. In addition, 

there are unofficial trails at various points. The project will need to analyze and study the 

existing network as to the feasibility of serving the property vs. creating new trails. 

 

26. What are the plans for parking? 

1. See response to question #16 

 

27. What are the plans for ADA Access? 

1. ADA access will need to be analyzed and studied as part of the project. 

 

28. Can we contact LandPaths for more information? 

1. No. The City is the lead on the project and all questions must be directed to the City. 
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29. Does the management plan need to comply with CEQA? How should CEQA be addressed as part 

of this project? Do we want a CEQA forester as part of the team? Is CEQA documentation part of 

the RFP? 

1. See addendum #2 

 

30. Can we bid on both the Fitch Mountain Management Plan and the upcoming parks and open 

space plan update? 

1. Yes, you can bid on both projects. At this time we don’t have a timeline for the parks and 

open space plan update. 

 

31. Is there potential for controversy related to the management plan? 

1. This is a public process that involves a highly visible property surrounded by residential 

uses.  Although there is great support for the project the consultant should be prepared for 

some controversy that could be related to types of uses, access, and management 

practices.  

 

32. LEPA Funding and federal review?  

1. None that the City is aware of at this time.  Consultant will need to study this as part of 

the project. 

 

33. What are the estimated lengths of new trails? 

1. This is to be determined as part of the project. See prior responses related to trails.  

 

34. Is this project expected to produce construction documents for the trails that are identified, or is it 

intended to be more of a planning document with construction documents at a future stage? 

1. Planning document with construction documents at a future stage.  

35. Do we have an overarching vegetation management plan for fire reduction? Do we want the 

management plan to show how we address fire management long term?  

1. Yes, the Management Plan should address Best Management practices on Fitch Mountain 

with regards to fire. 

 

36. Is this an SRA site? 

1. Yes. Fitch Mountain is considered State Responsibility Area.  

 

37. What is the budget for this project? 

1. See addendum #2 

Con 

38. What do you anticipate in terms of public input process? 

1. See question #19 
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39. Is this property located in the City or the County? Who’s jurisdiction? 

1. The land is locate in unincorporated portion of the county, but within the City’s sphere of 

influence-County jurisdiction 

 

40. Do you expect that cultural resource review be part of the project (e.g. former Native American 

presence)? 

1. A cultural resource review will be needed for this project. 

 

41. Can the City provide the conservation easement documents for Fitch Mountain?  

1. See attachments 

 

 

 

  



City of Healdsburg 

Fitch Mountain RFP  

Need for Environmental Analysis 

RFI – January 11, 2016  

 

 
Overview – On December 18, 2016, the City of Healdsburg issued a Request for Proposals for the 

preparation of a comprehensive management plan (the Plan) for the Fitch Mountain Open Space 

Preserve.  Amongst other things, the Plan was to provide a comprehensive land use and resource 

management plan that would include an inventory of existing conditions and facilities as well as 

offer a preferred strategy regarding long-term future use of the Fitch Mountain Preserve.  The 

existing RFP provided information and guidance regarding the content and overall process related to 

production of the Plan for formal consideration by the City 

Amendment #1 – The City issued its first amendment to the RFP to allow more time for final 

submittal of RFP’s by those firms that attended the required scoping session.  The current deadline 

for submitting a RFP for consideration is 3.00 PM on Friday, January 29, 2016.   

The Need for Environmental Review – As part of follow-up, many firms raised questions related to the 

anticipated need and level of environmental review.  In response these inquiries, the City needs to 

clarify that the successful RFP shall include a proposal to provide preparation of an Initial Study and 

environmental review documentation as part of the overall work program.  The RFP may include 

working with an environmental sub-consultant to achieve this portion of the work program. 

Funding Sources – The City also wishes to clarify that the funding sources for the production of the 

Fitch Mountain Management Plan is derived from the State of California Coastal Conservancy 

($150,000) and the City of Healdsburg ($50,000 match).  Because there is no use of federal monies, 

the City anticipates that the awarded consultant proposal will produce adequate environmental 

review and analysis documentation to meet the provisions of the California Environmental Quality 

Act.   

Program-Level Review – The Management Plan will be a comprehensive policy, program, and 

implementation document which will include suggested best practices to implement the anticipated 

capital projects and resource conservation programs (trail facilities development; resource 

management programs, maintenance and operations facilities, etc.) that will be contained within the 

Plan.   As such, a “program-level” CEQA analysis will be needed in order for the City to formally 

adopt the Plan. 

In addition to producing the environmental analysis, this work shall include adequate resources to 

produce related mitigation measures/programs – through working with agency staff, as needed, and 

time to produce any formal documentation that may be needed to respond to public comments.  

Finally, the environmental review process should anticipate the CEQA consultant team 

representatives to attend up to 2 public meetings/public hearings.  As such, a separate cost estimate 

for meeting attendance by the CEQA team representatives should be included in the RFP. 



City of Healdsburg 

Fitch Mountain RFP  

Need for Environmental Analysis 

RFI – January 11, 2016  

 

 
It is anticipated that when the City is ready to consider actual construction of facilities associated 

with implementation of the Plan, that separate “project-level” environmental review will be 

conducted  in order to more fully assess potential sit-specific impacts of any proposed construction 

work related to overall implementation of the Plan after it is adopted by the City.   

Integration into Overall Work Program – The overall work program should reflect a “stand-alone 

component which includes environmental review activities that will be overseen and monitored by 

City staff.  The environmental review program should reflect an administrative review process and 

public review process that would allow the City to consider both the Fitch Mountain Management 

Plan and related environmental documentation through its public hearing process. 
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